
                                     
Rhode Island Statewide Planning Program 

STATE PLANNING COUNCIL 
MINUTES 

Thursday, January 12th,  2005 
William E. Powers Building 

One Capitol Hill, Providence, Rhode Island 

 
Members Present 

 
 
Ms. Beverly Najarian 
 
Mr.  Kevin Flynn, Acting Chair 
 
 
Mr. John O’Brien, Secretary 
 
Mr. Daniel Beardsley     
 
Ms. Jeanne Boyle      
 
 
Mr. James Capaldi 
 
Ms. Lucy Garliauskas (Advisory Member) 
 
Mr. Peder Schaefer 
 
 
Mr. B. Michael Rauh    
  
Ms. Janet White Raymond    
 
Mr. William Sequino              
 
Mr. Henry Sherlock 
 
 
Mr. John Trevor 
 
 

 
Director, RI Department of Administration 
 
Representing Ms. Beverly Najarian, 
   RI Department of Administration 
  
Statewide Planning 
 
RI League of Cities and Towns 
 
Representing Mr. William J. Fazioli, 
 City of East Providence 
 
RI Department of Transportation 
 
Federal Highway Administration 
 
Representing Ms. Rosemary Booth Gallogly,  
 Budget Office 
 
Environmental Advocate 
 
Public Member 
 
Public Member 
 
Representing Mr. Steven Cardi, 
  Public Member 
 
Environmental Advocate 
 

Members Absent 
 

 
Ms. Susan Baxter    RI Housing Resources Commission 
 
Mr. Timothy M. Costa, Vice Chair  Governor’s Policy Office 
 
Mr. Thomas Deller    Department of Planning & Development 
          City of Providence 
 
Mr. Joseph Newsome    South Providence Development Corporation 
 
Ms. Anna Prager    Public Member 

 



SPC -2, January 12, 2006 
 

 
Guests 

 
Ms. Diane Badorek    RI Department of Transportation 
 
Ms. Kelly Mahoney     Senate Policy Office 
 
Mr. Juan Mariscal    RI Water Resources Board 
 
Mr. David Riley    Friends of India Point 
 
Mr. Ralph Rizzo    Federal Highway Administration 
 
Mr. Paul Roberti    RI Attorney General’s Office    
 
Mr. Robert Shawver    RI  Department of Transportation 
 
Ms. Josephine Taylor    RI Department of Transportation 
 

                           Staff--Statewide Planning Program 
 
Mr. George Johnson    Assistant Chief, Statewide Planning 
 
Ms. Blanche Higgins    Supervising Planner, Land Use 
 
Ms. Katherine Trapani    Supervising Planner, Transportation  
 
Ms. Nancy Hess    Principal Environmental Planner, Land Use 
 
Mr. Kevin Nelson    Principal Planner, Land Use 
 
Ms. Patricia Greene    Customer Service Specialist I 
 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 
1.  Call to Order  
 
     Mr. Flynn called the meeting to order at 9:07 a.m.   
 
2.   Approval of December 8th Minutes  
 
     Mr. Trevor moved that: 
 
     THE MINUTES BE APPROVED. 
 
     The motion was seconded by Ms. Boyle and carried unanimously.  
     
3.  Chief’s Progress Report 
      
     Mr. O’Brien reported that the state approval status of affordable housing plans stands at 28. He noted 
that during the month of December, staff approved the plans from Richmond and Barrington.  The sole 
remaining plan to be approved is from Foster, and staff is working closely with members of the planning 
board to get that plan approved.   
 
 
 
 
 



SPC -3, January 12, 2006 
 

 
     Mr. O’Brien stated that response to staff’s offer of technical assistance for implementation of the plans 
has been sporadic.  Nevertheless, staff remains committed to providing whatever assistance is needed.  
Staff has also begun working on developing the required GIS map of sites suitable for high-density 
development.  This mapping will use some of the same site suitability analysis conducted for the update 
of the Land Use Plan as well as information available from the 2003/2004 flight of ortho photos. 
 
     Mr. O’Brien stated that the State Housing Strategy will be considered by the Housing Resources 
Commission on Friday, January 14th.  Staff expects to receive it for adoption as an element of the State 
Guide Plan shortly thereafter.   He noted that it may be on the February Technical Committee Agenda. 
 
     Mr.  O’Brien noted that staff has also been advised that the update to the Solid Waste Management 
Plan has been accepted by the board of the Resource Recovery Corporation.  Staff will also be scheduling 
that plan for Technical Committee review. 
 
     The Economic Development Section, as part of the EDA planning grant, has just entered into a 
Cooperative Agreement with the Bureau of Government Research and Services at Rhode Island College 
to provide technical assistance and research capability to local and regional planners as needed to support 
their own economic development objectives, as well as update their comprehensive plans and assemble 
CEDS projects 
 
     Mr. O’Brien stated that notice of the availability of funds for planning challenge grants and 
transportation corridor studies were sent out last week.  Each category has a total of $250,000 available.  
Grant applications are due on February 24th and a grant application workshop has been scheduled for 
January 24th.  
 
     Mr. O’Brien reported that the study of the opportunities and impacts of transit-oriented development in 
Washington County, funded by Statewide Planning, was recently completed.  At the invitation of the 
South East Regional Planning and Economic Development District, (our sister MPO in Southeast MA), 
Mr. George Johnson briefed their committee addressing the impacts of expansion of MBTA service to 
Fall River and New Bedford on the findings of the study.    
 
4.  Transportation Improvement Program:  FFY 2006-2007 - Amendment #1 
 
     Mr. Flynn noted that this amendment was tabled at the December meeting, as there was a question regarding the 
availability of the required state match.  He asked Director Capaldi to report on the current status of those 
discussions. 
 
     Mr. Capaldi noted that work on the state match issue is continuing, and he reviewed some of the history of state 
funding for transportation.  He stated that the Governor is committed to matching the federal funds. 
 
     He noted that these issues have not yet been discussed with the Governor since only recently was the federal 
obligation limitation that applies to FFY 05 and 06 received.  In those years, the earmarked projects total $45 and 
$48 million.  Congress is paying for those projects by lowering the regular program.  For Rhode Island, this will 
mean a reduction of from $160 million to $137 million in 2006 and a similar reduction in 2005. 
 
     He stated that his staff will have recommendations for the TAC, but in summary it will probably mean delaying 
numerous projects.   RIDOT needs time to work out recommendations for a balanced and fiscally constrained TIP.  
He noted that in addition to the earmarks, another $96 million is available for trains that also has to be matched. 
 
     Mr. Flynn asked if one month was enough time to get the revisions to the TAC.  Mr. Capaldi responded that it 
was, and action by the Council would probably be required in March so that projects are not delayed any further. 
 
 
 
 
 



SPC -4, January 12, 2006 
 

 
     Ms. Garliauskas emphasized that a match has to be provided and she stated that this is potentially a difficult issue 
that will have to be addressed by the state.   
 

 Action: 
 

     Mr. Beardsley moved to: 
 
     TABLE THE AMENDMENT UNTIL THE MARCH MEETING 
  
     The motion was seconded by Mr. Rauh and carried unanimously. 
 
5.  Land Use 2005:  State Land Use Policies and Plan – State Guide Plan Element 121 

 
      Mr. O’Brien provided an overview of the process and of the draft plan, highlighting significant changes since the 
previous draft.  These changes included eliminating the land use intensity categories from the future land use map.  
Mr. O’Brien noted that the policy objective of the plan as portrayed by the map remains the same but elimination of 
the intensity categories removes the potential for both misuse of those categories and conflicts with local plans. 
 
     Mr. O’Brien also noted that the discussion of density has been expanded and examples of various forms and 
density were added to the plan.  The only other substantive changes involved edits of some of the goal statements to 
make them consistent in both part two and five as well as  objectives to make them more quantifiable. 
  
     Mr. O’Brien noted that the Technical Committee unanimously voted to recommend the draft to the Council for 
public hearings.  Mr. O’Brien stated that if the Council accepted the draft, workshops and hearings would be held 
throughout the state beginning in late February. 

 
Discussion: 
 
     Ms. Boyle stated that she was surprised to learn that even though East Providence had been designated as a 
growth center, the Governor had not signed the Executive Order that would allow permit expediting.  Mr. O’Brien 
noted that it was intended that this plan would take growth centers to that next level and he stated that a major 
conference on growth centers is planned for the spring. 
 
     Mr. Sequino  asked  if  the  urban  services  boundary  accounted  for  water  issues  such  as  in Kent County.  
Mr. O’Brien noted that the boundary represents the extent of water infrastructure but he acknowledged that there 
remained the issues of the resource to fill the pipes.  He stated that the plan would partially address this issue by not 
supporting expansion of that infrastructure. 
 
     Mr. Rauh congratulated the staff on the plan.  He recommended some language changes in the Preface dealing 
with property tax and suggested that the concept of transfer of development rights be more prominent in the plan.  
Noting the use of 1995 land use data, he suggested that the plan commit to a date for updating that data and the plan.  
Mr. O’Brien reviewed the current status of the land cover data update and he noted that a final product may be in 
two years.  Mr. Flynn reviewed the work done by the staff to use aerial photos to determine the current status of sites 
and he suggested that this discussion needed further elaboration in the plan.  Ms. Boyle suggested that that work also 
be documented in the appendix. 
 
     Mr. Beardsley noted that there would be presentations on transit oriented development and the land use plan at 
the League’s annual convention and he invited members of the Council to attend. 
 
     Ms. Boyle congratulated the staff and stated that this plan really gets the idea across of what the state will look 
like if the course is not changed.  She noted the implications of this plan to local planners and asked how they would 
be advised.  Mr. O’Brien reviewed the format for the upcoming workshops and hearings and he also noted that the 
required GIS housing density map would be made available to all local communities for their input. 
 
 
 
 



SPC -5, January 12, 2006 
 

Action:  
 
     Ms. Raymond moved to: 
 
     ACCEPT LAND USE 2025: STATE LAND USE POLICES AND PLAN FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
     The motion was seconded by Mr. Sequino and carried unanimously. 
 
6.  Other Business 
 
      There was no other business. 
 
7.  Adjourn
 
     Mr. Flynn adjourned the meeting at 10:34 a.m. 

 
    Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
    John P. O’Brien, Secretary  
JO’B:pag 

 
 


	Thursday, January 12th,  2005
	William E. Powers Building
	Members Present
	THE MINUTES BE APPROVED.



